
Date Published:7 September 2020     

Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 15 September 2020 at 10.00 am

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Jo Moore

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Jo Moore

3  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 10) Jo Moore

4  PUBLIC REPRESENTATION 

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is piloting an approach
whereby members of the public can make representations at committee
meetings.

At each meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee there shall be up to 20
minutes set aside for representations (3 minutes allocated per member of
the public).

Any person who lives or works in the county, or is affected by the work of
The County Council, may make a presentation on any matter which relates 
to
any item on the Health Overview and Scrutiny agenda for that meeting.
Notification of your intention to attend the meeting and make a 
representation should be given by 4pm three clear working days before 
the date of the meeting.

The closing date for notification is 4pm on  9 September 2020.
Please email jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk

If any individual has any particular requirements please include in the 
email.

Cllr Brian 
Robinson

5  WINTER PLANNING Maria Metherall

mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

To Follow

6  COVID-19 TEMPORARY SERVICE CHANGES 

To Follow

Ellen Rule

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 11 - 42)

Mary Hutton

8  WORK PLAN 

Members to identify if there is any items they wish to add to the work plan.

Next meeting:

October 2020 - TBC

17 November 2020

Cllr Brian 
Robinson

INFORMATION ITEMS

9  ONE GLOUCESTERSHIRE ICS LEAD REPORT (Pages 43 - 52) Mary Hutton

10  GCCG CLINICAL CHAIR/ ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 
53 - 72)

Mary Hutton

Membership –  Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Stephen Hirst, Cllr Paul Hodgkinson (Vice-Chair), 
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Brian Robinson (Chair), Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, 
Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Suzanne Williams

Added Members - 

Co-Opted Member - Cllr Collette Finnegan, Cllr Martin Horwood, Cllr Steve Lydon, Cllr Helen 
Molyneux, Cllr Dilys Neill and Cllr Jill Smith

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Acting Monitoring
Officer (Rob Ayliffe Tel: 01452 328506 e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Officer
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 14 
July 2020 at the Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting.

PRESENT:
Cllr Collette Finnegan
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson
Cllr Martin Horwood
Cllr Steve Lydon

Cllr Helen Molyneux 
Cllr Dilys Neill
Cllr Nigel Robbins
Cllr Brian Robinson (Chair)
 Cllr Jill Smith
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Substitutes:
Cllr Iain Dobie for Suzanne Williams

In attendance:

NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)/ One Gloucestershire 
Integrated Care System (ICS) 

Mary Hutton – Accountable Officer and ICS Lead
Ellen Rule - Director of Transformation and Service Redesign
Becky Parish

Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
Deborah Lee – Chief Executive 
Peter Lachecki – Chair 
Simon Lanceley- Director of Transformation

Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust 
Ingrid Barker – Chair
Angela Potter, Director of Strategy and Partnerships 
Paul Roberts 

Gloucestershire County Council 
Sarah Scott Director Public Health
Margaret Willcox – Director Adult Social Care
Cllr Tim Harman, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities 
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care Commissioning

Apologies: Cllr Brian Oosthuysen
Cllr Robert Vines
Cllr Suzanne Williams

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

See above.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No additional declarations were made.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record subject to the amendment of a typo at 7.1 where it should read: ’enabling 
active communities’

4 PUBLIC REPRESENTATION 

4.1 The Committee welcomed Dr David Willingham who was a Cheltenham Borough 
Councillor to make his representation as detailed below:

I am making this public representation to HOSC in respect of my continued concern 
about the reported Covid-19 death rate in the “Alstone and St Mark's” Middle-layer 
Super Output Area (MSOA) which has the formal designation of “Cheltenham 007”.
Online mapping published by the Office of National Statistics, suggests that as of 
31st May 2020, there have been thirty-two (32) Covid-19 related deaths in this 
MSOA.  My further analysis of dataset from which this mapping visualisation was 
derived, shows that this is the highest number of Covid-19 deaths for any MSOA in 
not just Gloucestershire, but the whole Southwest region, and equal fourth highest 
number of Covid-19 deaths in the whole of England and Wales.  My analysis also 
shows that in April 2020, Covid-19 was the leading cause of deaths (59%) in this 
MSOA.

Dialogue with the Director of Public Health for Gloucestershire County Council has 
suggested that “This MSOA has 9 care homes with 264 beds. This is much higher 
than the MSOA average of 3 care home with 80 beds. When cross-referenced with 
our local registration data there is a high match between areas with a high number 
of care homes and deaths we are aware of in care homes.”  
The communities that I represent, the bereaved families of the deceased, and 
families with relatives in care homes deserve both answers and reassurance.  
I am therefore making this public representation to request the HOSC investigate 
what factors led to the high death rate in the Alstone and St Mark’s MSOA, and if, 
as suggested, the majority of deaths were in care homes, what the causal factors 
that lead to this tragically high death-rate were.

If there were systemic failures at any level, whether national, regional or local, then 
it is imperative that these are quickly identified so that remediation can occur.  This 
feeds into the second part of my request which is to ensure that in the event of 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

resurgence of Covid-19 as lockdown measures are eased, the community that I 
represent, can be confident that there is sufficient understanding and preparedness 
that there will not be a repeat of the conditions that led to the high localised 
mortality rate.

My focus as a Borough Councillor is predominantly on the ward I serve and 
represent, as it has suffered the worst impact of this virus.  However, I recognise 
that it is clearly in the best interests of the county if other MSOAs in Gloucestershire 
with statistically significant elevated Covid-19 mortality rates also have similar 
investigations performed.

I trust that HOSC will agree that it is in the public interest for this to be investigated 
in as open and transparent way possible, so that the communities that I represent 
can understand what happened, and also get a reassurance that the understanding 
gained from this investigation is being used to inform the current response and will 
be used to inform any future response as part of any Local Outbreak Control Plan 
response if one needs to be implemented anywhere in Gloucestershire. 

4.2 The Chair thanked him for raising those points with the committee. He stated that 
he was sure members shared his concern about the high level of Covid-19 related 
deaths in his ward. The Committee would want to understand the challenges and 
learning points from Covid-19 later in the year from a strategic viewpoint and 
members would take on board the concerns raised when shaping the item as part 
of work planning.

4.3 Sarah Scott, Director of Public Health, thanked Dr Willingham for raising his 
questions and she provided some information regarding the way in which the 
MSOAs information was collated, emphasising that these areas were larger than 
traditional wards. She recognised that these areas often had variations in infection 
rates and there were certain factors which could make people more vulnerable to 
severe illnesses than others.  A range of information continued to be monitored on 
a daily basis to help provide a better picture of incidents of Covid-19 and the 
impacts on communities. Where care homes were suspected of suffering from an 
outbreak, contact was made by Public Health England, risk assessment taken and 
advice and support given. GCC and the CCG Integrated Brokerage Team were in 
daily contact with care homes offering support. Members noted that there was a 
Local Outbreak Management Plan. Some deaths were attributed to Covid-19 as a 
secondary cause, and it was important to fully understand the data. The deaths 
referred to had been in relation to two of the nine care homes in the area. Care 
homes were particularly at risk as they house a group of people who were known to 
be vulnerable to the Covid-19 infection. Each care home had been offered 
guidance and training on the use of infection prevention and control techniques and 
the correct use of PPE. There had not been an issue with the supply of PPE in the 
County. The Public Health  team would be discussing with Public Health England 
colleagues to better understand what had happened in this particular circumstance.

13.4 Margaret Willcox, Director of Adult Social Care, provided detail on the active work 
carried out with the Gloucestershire Care Providers Association around free 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

webinars and additional support. Every care home had received an uplift in funding 
since April with Cabinet agreement to continue this through to September as 
required. A detailed report had been provided to Adult Social Care and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee and this would be circulated to Members.

4.5 The Committee noted that all members had received a letter from REACH who 
wished to raise significant concerns about Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust’s intention to request a 3 month extension in respect of temporary 
emergency measures already in place. Members would keep this information in 
mind when considering item 5 on the agenda. 

Robert Arnold outlined the concerns which were articulated in the letter including 
the statistic that 20% of elective surgical patients who got Covid-19 died within 30 
days according to the British Medical Journal. He suggested that these concerns 
applied locally. The safety concerns he outlined included the continuation of major 
elective surgery at Gloucestershire Royal Hospital against national advice; the 
transfer of arterial vascular surgery from Cheltenham General to Gloucestershire 
Royal; the potential mixing of elective and emergency surgical patients; and the 
removal of emergency theatre at Cheltenham General. REACH suggested that all 
elective surgery be transferred to Cheltenham General, that there be a robust 
consent policy for surgical patients, and the reopening of emergency theatre at 
Cheltenham General.

4.6 Deborah Lee stated that the Trust would respond fully in writing to the REACH 
letter. The focus of the emergency service changes was on ensuring the safety of 
services in light of the challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic and to 
promote public confidence in services so that patients who needed access to 
healthcare, felt able to attend hospital. She went on to say that the changes had 
been developed by clinicians who had the safety and wellbeing of their patients at 
the forefront of their minds. She noted REACH’s concerns about the risk of 
transmission of the virus between emergency and elective patients and confirmed 
that there had not been a single episode of in hospital transmission of COVID-19 
since the changes had been made. It was explained that ‘blue patients’ were those 
patients confirmed to have COVID-19 and they were never cared for in an area with 
those awaiting elective surgery. Elective patients were only admitted after having a 
negative swab result at which point they would be labelled as ‘green patients’. 
Those of uncertain status, or confirmed positive, were managed in separate areas 
and wards, until a negative result was confirmed

The Chair thanked REACH for bringing the matter to members’ attention and stated 
that this would help inform members’ discussion of the main items on the agenda.

5. COVID-19 TEMPORARY SERVICE CHANGES 

5.1 The Committee received a report to update members regarding the Covid-19 
incident response and proposals for the temporary substantial variation and 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

development of Health Services in Gloucestershire that were required to meet the 
ongoing operational requirements. The Committee was asked for further support for 
changes with details provided in line with the locally agreed Memorandum of 
Understanding. Ellen Rule introduced the report.

5.2 This related to two service changes, the temporary reconfiguration of Emergency 
General Surgery to Gloucestershire Royal Hospital from Cheltenham General 
Hospital (temporary change enacted on 1 April 2020 and the temporary closure of 
The Vale, Dilke & Tewkesbury Minor Injury Units (enacted on 22 March 2020). 
Members had been notified of the initial temporary changes by email at the time.

5.3 The Committee understood the two-phase incident response where it was 
necessary to radically reprioritise and reshape services.  Phase 1 had been about 
moving at pace to ensure services were safe, with short term actions taken so that 
Covid-19 patients were handled safely.  Now the Trust was in phase 2 where 
Covid-19 was still in circulation but the rate of infection had changed and the 
degree to which the Country was ‘locked-down’ had changed. It was noted that 
throughout this a number of factors have arisen that have and continue to 
significantly affect productivity of health and care services; these include the need 
for increased levels of infection prevention and control in all services, the challenge 
presented in caring for those safely in the shielded and vulnerable categories and 
continuing higher levels of staff sickness. In addition the Trust was modelling 
scenarios with regards to potential winter pressures and a potential second peak to 
ensure services were in a safe place to respond.

5.4 The changes proposed would be up for review in September 2020 with HOSC 
meeting on the 15th September.

5.5 The Committee recognised that there was some overlap between the emergency 
service changes enacted in response to Covid-19 and the Fit for the Future 
proposals due to be brought to public consultation later in the year. This presented 
a complex message to the public and stakeholders.

5.6 An extensive public engagement had been carried out in relation for Fit for the 
Future in late 2019 and it was proposed that the programme would be re-
established in the autumn. There would be clarity around the changes that had 
been enacted as part of the temporary incident response and ensuring that no 
presumption existed regarding the medium to long-term proposals. 

5.7 Winter planning proposals had not been completed and that would come to 
Committee in September.

5.8 Simon Lanceley Director of Strategy, provided members with a run through of the 
pro-forma for Emergency General Surgery emergency service change. He 
explained that as a result of centralisation of emergency surgery services, five of 
the extreme risks have been reduced. He highlighted the patient benefits and case 
study outlined within the pro-forma and emphasised how these actions removed the 
rota challenges. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

5.9 In response to a member question, it was explained that carrying out a pilot during 
a pandemic was not the right thing to do. This was about temporary service change 
with any future permanent changes coming through the Fit for the Future 
programme. It was suggested that confidence could be taken from the fact that 
some of the areas of change to make things safe were changes that the Trust had 
been thinking about making for a while. Deborah Lee reiterated that the main driver 
for temporary change was handling the impact of the pandemic, but that there was 
still the opportunity to learn throughout. It was emphasised that in September the 
Committee would be able to clearly see the difference between the temporary 
service changes and the medium to long term changes that would be consulted on.

5.10 Members discussed the scepticism that was out there in the general public, where 
there were suggestions that temporary service changes would go on to be made 
permanent. In addition some members expressed concern that media reports 
suggested that Gloucestershire Royal were struggling as the only A & E in the 
County. Officers emphasised that Cheltenham A & E would be reinstated following 
the temporary period and it was explained that this statement had been made a 
number of times and would continue to be repeated. Members understood that any 
permanent changes would need to be consulted on and this was planned as part of 
the Fit for the Future programme. In relation to A & E performance it was explained 
that there an been some initial issues related to power cuts and road closures, but 
that those teething issues had been dealt with and things had settled down 
considerably. The performance was strong with the example given of no 12 hour 
trolley breaches and the fact that patients were not transferred from Cheltenham to 
Gloucester in the middle of the night as had been suggested. 

5.11 In response to queries on the Flu Jab it was explained that planning was underway 
and that there would be new challenges. It was suggested that the measures 
around social distancing and hand washing might have a positive impact on the 
incidences of Flu.

5.12 One member expressed concern about plans to launch the Fit for the Future 
consultation during a pandemic. 

5.13 One member asked the questions raised by the REACH presentation relating to 
why elective surgery had not been moved to Cheltenham General, why the 
emergency theatre at Cheltenham General had been closed and would a Type 1 A 
& E be restored at Cheltenham General following the end of the temporary service 
changes.

5.14 In response it was stated that the Type 1 A & E would be restored at Cheltenham 
General at the cessation of the temporary period. In relation to concerns on 
transmission of Covid-19 in hospitals, it was explained that once the bed base had 
changed due to social distancing and the temporary measures had been put in 
place, this had stopped. The General Surgery change had been due to long 
standing workforce issues. Changes made on 9 June had been to address the risk 
of virus transmission and that was from when the cross-infection figures had been 
taken. For Cheltenham there was still out of hour’s theatre available if a patient that 
required surgery was not well enough for transfer to Gloucestershire Royal.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

5.15 Members were informed that the changes relating to Vascular surgery were in 
relation to transmission risk and the need to create three separate entry pathways 
and this could not be done in isolation. The focus was on ensuring the whole 
emergency service model was safe.

5.16 In response to a question it was emphasised that those patients at Gloucestershire 
Royal were not exposed to greater risk. The changes enabled Covid-19 patients to 
be treated in isolation. With regards to concerns about the risk to elective surgical 
patients of contracting Covid-19, it was stated that 46 patients (predominantly 
emergency patients) had contracted Covid-19 in the early phase of the pandemic 
while in the Trust’s care which was less than 0.2% of patients. 11 of these had died. 
This was a sad situation and reflected the fact that many of these patients were in a 
vulnerable group. This was a position reflected across the Country and the Trust 
had responded and learned from this and their approach was now part of a national 
pilot. She restated that since the temporary changes were enacted there had been 
no cases of in-hospital transmission.

5.17 Angela Potter introduced the second pro-forma within the papers which was in 
relation to Minor Injury Units. There had been no incidents or complaints as a result 
of the temporary changes. The Trust were looking to move four units to an 8am to 
8pm opening, but would not be in a position to open the other three units within the 
three month time period. The risks were outlined within the document.

5.18 Members commented that they would be interested to see the analysis, once 
completed, around why the number of people visiting units had significantly reduced 
during this period.

5.19 The Committee noted the pro-forma’s and the plans for the continuation of the 
temporary changes without further comment. The minutes of the meeting would 
reflect the concerns raised and the variety of views. Members welcomed a further 
update in September as the Trust moved towards consultation of medium and long 
term changes as part of Fit for the Future. The Trust were able to extend the 
temporary service changes for a further three months.

6. FIT FOR THE FUTURE UPDATE 

6.1 Members noted the timeline outlined within the previous item for Fit for the Future 
and confirmed that they would receive the pre-consultation business case 
proposals at the meeting on 15 September 2020.

6.2 It was explained that the Trust was working on the detail during July before meeting 
NHS England improvement in August and then in September launching the 
consultation with public boards and HOSC. In November there would be a Citizens 
Jury and then implementation would be planned for the new year (subject to 
consideration of outcome of consultation and any Citizens’ Jury recommendations). 
While it was recognised that the short term challenges around Covid-19 needed to 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

be considered, it was still felt that long term planning and consultation on those 
plans were needed. Throughout the process there would be opportunity for 
reflection and consideration of current challenges and how that might change long 
term plans.

6.3 One member asked how the consultation would be publicised and carried out. It 
was explained that members would receive a detailed consultation plan, but it was 
acknowledged that traditional methods were unlikely to be relied upon in the current 
circumstances. The consultation would include online discussion forums, short 
surveys, polls and conversations with training being carried out on the systems and 
processes to support this. Members understood that the CCG had been working 
closely with Gloucestershire County Council with the recent allocation of grants and 
funding through the Digital Innovation Fund.

7. GLOUCESTERSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 

7.1 Mary Hutton presented the performance report explaining that there was some 
updated information. This included a recent rise in Emergency Department activity 
but still below pre-covid levels as well as a 4.9% reduction in category 1 ambulance 
calls. There was also a focus on discharge.

7.2 In relation to cancer referrals, these had been well below the previous year’s levels 
for May and June but for July was back up to 100%.

7.3 In response to a question on ambulance response times in rural areas, it was 
explained that there had been new investment to provide more vehicles on the 
ground in 2020 as well as an investment in first responders. This was not an area 
the CCG was taking lightly.

7.4 There was some discussion around pathology services particular in Cirencester and 
members was reminded that phlebotomy services across the county were being 
delivered through GP surgeries in their own practices which should allow them to 
be more responsive. There would be no changes to the timeline and process for 
obtaining results.

7.5 In response to questions on waiting time at Gloucestershire Royal compared to 
Cheltenham, it was stated that Gloucestershire Royal Hospital performance during 
the pandemic was very strong and comparable to the previous year. One member 
expressed concern and stated that the poor performance in Gloucester was 
striking.

8. ONE GLOUCESTERSHIRE ICS LEAD REPORT 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

8.1 The Committee noted the report.

8.2 It was explained that a survey had been issued for those that had been 
volunteering during the Covid-19 pandemic asking for their experiences and asking 
if they would like to volunteer again. One member emphasised the importance of 
utilising the experience in this area.

9. GCCG CLINICAL CHAIR/ ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER REPORT 

9.1 The Committee noted the report. 

9.2 One member noted the actions that had been taken to support care homes and 
asked whether there were any national systemic failures in this areas that had been 
identified and fed back to Government. In response it was explained tat issues had 
been identified of staff moving between care home and the need for PPE training 
and that all that learning was being fed back into the national work. It was also 
explained that a number of care homes had staff that did not have good use of the 
English language and that they had been unable to interpret guidance. One 
member called on the need for greater regulation of care homes.

9.3 Members were asked to fill in the survey within the papers on Covid-19 and pass 
the link on more widely. 

9.4 One member asked a question about the previous mention that locally the Public 
Health team did not have access to the patient details of local cases of Covid-19 to 
enable outbreak management. This was confirmed as correct by the Director of 
Public Health. Instead, she worked closely with the South West Public Health 
England Team who did have access to this data to manage outbreaks. There was 
also  a question on spare capacity at local testing sites. With regards to testing, 
there was spare capacity due to the relatively low numbers of Covid-19 in the 
County. This spare capacity was available should there be a second peak, but the 
Public Health team was also in discussions with regards to how this resource could 
be best utilised.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 12:35

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Report Title 

  

Gloucestershire CCG Performance report  

September 2020 

Purpose of Report 

  

  

The performance framework report provides the Committee with an overview of Gloucestershire 

CCG performance against the NHS constitutional and other agreed standards. 

A full summary of performance against national and local standards as reported to GCCG Governing 

Body is included, with supporting narrative to inform members of key system actions to 

support  continued performance or mitigating actions to give assurance where performance is below 

target or there is outlying variation across the county. 

 

Is this for information 

or decision? 

  

This Report is for information. 

Authors 

  

Kat Doherty, Senior BI Manager, GCCG 

  

Key Issues:   

• There has been widespread impact of COVID-19 on activity and performance across the system, affecting nearly every 

service and target. 

• Patient behaviours have changed dramatically resulting in new demand patterns during the lockdown period.  This 

alteration in activity returning to pre-COVID levels variably across different settings, and challenges remain due to 

configurational, infection control and staffing issues. 

 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7



Contents 

This document is a highlight report which is presented to give the CCG Governing Body an overview 

of current CCG and provider performance across a range of national priorities and local standards.  

 
1.0 Scorecard    

 

2.0 Executive Summary  

 2.1 Leadership 

 2.2 Better Care 

 2.3 Sustainability 

  

  

3.0 Better Care: Performance updates  

2 

P
age 12



1.0 Scorecard: CCG Performance Overview 

CCG IAF assessments for 2018/19 were published 11th July 2019.  

 GCCG was rated “Good” overall. 

3 

P
age 13



2.1.
3 
 
 

2.1.
1 
 
 

2.1.
2 
 
 

2.1.
4 
 
 

2.1 Executive Summary - Leadership 

This domain assesses the quality of the CCG's leadership, the quality of its plans, how 
the CCG works with its partners, and the governance arrangements that the CCG has in 
place to ensure it acts with probity, for example in managing conflicts of interest. 

Staff engagement : Robust culture and Leadership Sustainability (OD Plan) 

Probity and Corporate Governance:  Full governance compliance 

Effectiveness of working relationships in the local system: Effectiveness of working 
relationships in the local system 

Quality of CCG leadership:  Review of the effectiveness of culture, leadership 
sustainability and an oversight of quality assurance. 

4 

P
age 14



2.1.
1 
 
2.1.
2 
 

 
 
 

2.1.
3 
 
2.1.
4 
 
2.1.
5 
 

Overall 
Rating 
 
 
 
 

2.1.
6 
 

2.1 Executive Summary - Better Care 

This domain focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional standards, 
and outcomes, including in important clinical areas 

Planned Care 

Unscheduled Care 

Cancer 

Mental Health 

Learning Disability 

Maternity 

5 

P
age 15



2.1.
3 

2.1.
1 

2.1.
2 

 
 
 

2.1.
5 

2.1.
6 

Overall 
Rating 
 
 
 
 

2.1.
4 

2.1.
7 

2.1 Executive Summary - Sustainability 

This domain focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional standards, 
and outcomes, including in important clinical areas 

Year to date surplus variance to plan (%) 

Forecast surplus to plan (% variance) 

Forecast running costs in comparison to running cost allocation (%) 

Forecast savings delivery in comparison to plan (%) 

Year to date BPPC performance in comparison to 95% target (%) 

Cash drawdown in line with planned profile (%) 

Forecast capital spend in comparison to plan (%) 

5 

P
age 16



3.0 Performance Dashboard 

78.4
% 

 Performance 
(all Gloucestershire 

patients) 

2 Week 
Waits 

2 Week 
Waits Breast 

31 Day 1st 
Treatment 

31 Day Waits 
Surgery  

89.5% 

31 Day Waits 
Drugs  

31 Day Waits 
Radiotherapy 

62 Day GP 
Referral 

62 Day  
Screening 

62 Day  
Upgrade 

95.7% 96.7% 100% 80.1% 

Planned Care 

RTT  

Diagnostics 

June 2020 

RTT Incomplete <18 weeks        RTT 52 week breaches 
All Providers        GHFT           All Providers        GHFT    

 

Diagnostics >6 weeks 
(All providers)       (GHFT)              .  

Diagnostics >6 weeks (YTD) 
      (All providers)          (GHFT) 

35.3% 

Unscheduled 

Care  

4 Hour A&E   
July-20  

(System) 

4 Hour A&E   
July-20 
 (GHFT) 

Category 1 Ambulance 
July-20 

(Gloucestershire)  

Category 1 Ambulance 
July-20 
SWAST 

90.1% 84.6% 7.0 mins 6.8 mins 

Delayed Transfers of 

Care (DToC) 

Reporting suspended 
nationally 

IAPT   
(June 2020) 

Access 
(target 1.53%) 

Recovery 
(target 50%) 

1.4% 54.4% 

GHFT 

Performance 

Cancer 

Dashboard  
(June 2020) 

29.7% 

Dementia 

Diagnosis 

(June 2020) 

Estimated Diagnosis 
Rate (Target 66.7%) 

64.3% 

60.4% 61.3% 523 

97.8% 95.9% 96.4% 91.3% 100% 79.3% 

610 

Arrow direction reflects performance 
from previous month 

40.1% 37.0% 

98.0% 

66.7%  78.6%  

81.3%  

89.6% 

89.7% 66.7%  

P
age 17



8 

3.0 Performance summary 

Performance against the majority of NHS targets has dropped significantly due to the impact of COVID-19.  

GCCG is performing similarly to or exceeding the national performance average for most areas.  The 

exception to this is the 4 hour target, which is slightly below the national average. 

Also of note, is the significant drop in dementia diagnosis both locally and nationally – this may be due to a 

combination of data quality issues and a reduction in patient activity in both primary and secondary care 

services during the COVID-19 response.  A further analysis is underway to confirm the impact of COVID-19 

on dementia patients locally, as several national studies have highlighted the increased dementia prevalence 

in patients dying due to COVID-19. 

Target Reporting Period National Gloucestershire 

A&E July-20 92.1% 90.1% 

Ambulance – Cat 1 July-20 6.8 minutes 7 minutes 

RTT June-20 52.0% 60.4% 

Diagnostics June-20 47.8% 35.3% 

Cancer 2ww June-20 90.6% 97.8% 

Cancer 62 day June-20 75.2% 79.3% 

IAPT recovery May-20 50.6% 44.3% 

Dementia Diagnosis June-20 63.5% 64.3% 

P
age 18



9 

3.0 Activity impact of COVID-19 – national summary 

Analysis by the Kings Fund shows the national activity decreases across all care settings – with the highest 

proportional change in admitted elective care. 

Nationally, elective care has been slower to return to pre-lockdown levels, with a national focus on restoring 

elective care emphasised in the current Phase 3 planning round. 

While national data mostly is available to the end of June, locally activity has continued to increase through 

July, with assumptions that emergency demand in particular would stay below pre-lockdown levels for the 

coming months seeming more unlikely. 

Kings Fund: Quarterly monitoring report (QMR) 29 

Type 1 
A&E 

Minor 
A&E 

Emergency 
admission 

Elective 
admissions 

Non-admitted 
Elective care 

Imaging 
tests 

Physiological 
tests 

Endoscopy 

P
age 19



8 

3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care 

P
age 20



9 

3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care 

P
age 21



10 

3.1 Unscheduled Care - 4 hour A&E 

In July, GHFT saw 86.4% of patients in 4 hours or less in a Type 1 setting. Gloucestershire STP saw 90.1% of 

patients in all settings within 4 hours. This is broadly a similar performance position to recent months, despite 

continued rise in demand for emergency activity. 

Of the 114 providers who also provided Type 1 A&E service, GHFT ranked 95th. Gloucestershire ICS ranked 

32nd of the 42 STPs in overall percentage of attendances within 4 hours and 33rd in the 41 STPs for type 1 

activity.  

GRH performance has remained more volatile than CGH, reflecting the capacity constraints and challenges of 

dealing with several cohorted groups of patients in an ED setting.  Activity levels in July have returned to ~80% 

of 2019 activity, with majors patient activity at 87% of July 2019 levels, and minors patient activity at 74% of 

July 2019 activity. 

P
age 22



13 

3.1 ED site 4 hour performance breakdown 

P
age 23



3.1 Unscheduled Care Updates 

MIIU activity and performance 

All MIIU sites have saw a significant decrease in activity during the lockdown period, and as of 
the end of March, three community MIIUs have closed (Tewkesbury, Dilke, The Vale), which may 
account for some of the overall drop in MIIU activity.   

Activity has returned to nearer pre-COVID levels at the Lydney and Stroud MIIUs, which may 
reflect patients attending these sites who would previously have considered the Dilke or Vale 
sites.  MIIU activity overall has remained depressed when compared with the recent increases 
seen in acute ED activity.  Performance at all MIIU sites remains excellent with only 3 breaches 
declared across all sites throughout July. 

 

Cinapsis (Hot advice from specialty consultants for medical emergency referrals): 

In response to the COVID situation two new services have been added to Cinapsis, COVID-19 
Adult Admissions and COVID-19 Palliative Care Advice.  As well as GPs, Cinapsis has been 
extended to other clinical referring organisations and their teams, OOH, MIIU, Rapid Response, 
GPs in community hospitals, Community Mental Health Services and the SWAST Paramedics. 
SWAST are now also using Cinapsis for advice around conveyance of medical patients.  To date, 
25 calls have been made with 3 conveyances avoided. 

 

OOH: 

OOHs has responded well to the demands of the COVID-19 pandemic and have mirrored models 
applied within in hours Primary care with a red/green approach to case management. A significant 
amount of contacts are managed via telephone advice, supported by videoconferencing. There 
has been a significant shift in how patients are managed with reduced face to face and home 
visits being undertaken, and a reduction in overall activity due to changes in patient behaviour.  
Face-to-face attendances have remained very low due to these new ways of working 
 

P
age 24



15 

3.1 NHS111 

NHS111 call activity in July has remained stable to June and is in line with demand in 2019 for the same 

period.  Call outcomes in July have also stayed consistent with June 2020, showing an increase in ED and 

ambulance dispositions compared to the same month last year. 

 

Performance against the calls answered standard (calls answered within 60 seconds)  remains above the 

2019 average, with 92.7% calls answered within 60 seconds in July 2020. 

 

Work is continuing around strengthening the validation of ED and ambulance dispositions from NHS111 to 

reduce unnecessary ED attendances and ambulance call outs.  With a timeframe to roll out in time to 

support winter demand management, national initiative “Think NHS111” is being modelled, with the 

expectation that up to 20% of “unheralded” (i.e. self-referred) demand to ED departments could be given 

advice or directed to a more appropriate care setting.   

 

P
age 25



12 

3.1 Unscheduled Care - Ambulance Category 1 

Gloucestershire performance in Category 1 for July 2020 has achieved the 7 minute standard as an average, 

with performance at 7.0 minutes.  YTD performance across Gloucestershire is 7.0 minutes on average.  

SWAST Performance across all geographical areas (South West) was 6.8 minutes in July, with yearly 

average 6.7 minutes. 

Call outcomes have remained broadly similar to June, with the decrease in conveyances seen during the 

lock down period now having reverted to performance similar to the 2019/20 average.  In July, 54.8% of all 

incidents were conveyed to an emergency treatment centre, 49% of all incidents were conveyed to an ED 

department specifically. 

Handover delays have been increasing at the GRH site in July compared to previous months, however due 

to the changes at Cheltenham A&E, there is no significant change at a countywide level. 

P
age 26



13 

3.1 Unscheduled Care - Ambulance Category 2 

Category 2 performance has held its performance against the average response time of 18 minutes in July 

2020 with average time of 17.8 minutes in Gloucestershire (and 20 minutes over the whole SWAST 

region).This is despite a slight climb in activity across July compared to May/June activity.  Incident numbers 

remain around the indicative contract value in July, however are expected to rise.  The South West region is 

working together to prioritise schemes for management of SWAST demand and support in reducing 

conveyances to ED or other emergency care settings. 

Initially the priority for Gloucestershire will include: 

- 111 demand (validation of Category 3 and 4 calls) 

-  Use of rotational placements for paramedics in GP surgeries 

- Access to Cinapsis for clinical advice 

- Strengthening the clinical validation offer within SWAST (Hear-and-treat) 

 

P
age 27



18 

3.1 Ambulance Category 1 response – locality view 

P
age 28



14 

3.2 Delayed Transfers of Care 

From March 2020, national reporting of DToCs has been postponed to support trusts by removing some 

reporting requirements to free up staff capacity.  This has meant that a 2019/20 final DToC position for the 

acute trust is not available.   

 

The latest daily average (over week commencing 3rd August) for DToCs in GHFT was 23 delays/day – which 

is a slight increase on recent weeks and is indicative of the rising number of occupied beds at GHFT – in 

addition to an increase in the number of long stay patients. 

 

The community and mental heath beds have seen sustained reductions in delayed transfers of care 

throughout the lockdown period, and into June 2020, possibly as a result of the emphasis on discharging 

patients in March 2020 which has led to a reduction in long stay patients across all settings. 

P
age 29



15 

3.2 Long Stay (>21 day LoS) 

As of the 3rd August 2020, the weekly average acute long stay patient figure was 79, which is a significant 

reduction on 2019/20 levels  driven by the focus on discharging patients ahead of the surge in demand for 

acute care due to CoViD-19 and subsequent reduction in bed occupancy at GHFT.  Nationally, patients 

remaining in acute hospitals more than 21 days have also decreased dramatically.  

Long stays appear to be slowly rising at GHFT, potentially as a result of rising DToCs, with 7 and 14 day 

stays rising significantly (and starting to approach pre-lockdown levels). 

P
age 30



16 

3.3 System Overview - Planned Care 

P
age 31



17 

3.4 Planned Care - Diagnostic >6 weeks 

Overall performance in June has improved from the April/ May position for the CCG however remains 
significantly above the 1% of patients waiting more than 6 weeks for a diagnostic test standard at 35.3% 
(April was 39.1%, may was 47.7%).  The GHFT position has also improved this month to 29.7% (April was 
42.5%, May was 43.7%).  All tests failed to meet the 1% standard, with endoscopy tests having the highest 
% of patients waiting more than 6 weeks due to almost complete cancellation of some activity throughout 
April, and reduction in many if not all other areas.  

June activity has increased by 22% compared to May 2020, but remains lower than activity in June 2019 by 
25%.  This is due to the sustained impact of COVID in infection control even after activity has begun to 
increase, and patient willingness to attend hospital appointments.  It is likely that there will be a significant 
impact on performance for many months to come and some pathways are working in a different way to 
ensure that patients requiring urgent tests are prioritised.  For example, primary care are able to pre-screen 
patients using FIT tests for Lower GI pathways to identify the patients most at risk of cancer requiring a 
colonoscopy, and give reassurance to those who are not prioritised for endoscopic tests. 

P
age 32



18 

3.4 RTT 

Activity is resuming for elective care 
following the NHSE directive to suspend 
all routine care throughout late March 
and April to free up capacity for the 
COVID-19 response.  Despite this, 
performance has declined significantly 
from 2019/20 levels as a result of the 
combination of a drop in referrals and 
lower throughput on RTT pathways.  
This has resulted in a smaller overall 
waiting list but patients waiting longer on 
average for treatment. Referral volumes 
are beginning to recover but remain 
lower than 2019 levels for the same time 
period (July).  

 

Performance is expected to continue to 
decline especially as referral volumes 
increase in the period following the 
COVID-19 response.  Currently the 
system is modelling “Phase 3” of the 
COVID-19 response, which will attempt 
to maximise the elective activity over the 
coming months to address some of the 
waiting list backlog. 

 

Performance in June for all GCCG 
patients was 67.9% of the waiting list 
waiting under 18 weeks for treatment), 
with 610 fifty-two week incomplete 
pathway waiters. 523 of these were at 
GHFT and there was a substantial rise in 
OOC >52 week breaches, which were 
across 18 other providers.   

P
age 33



3.5 2ww Overview Cancer 

19 

P
age 34



3.5 System Overview Cancer 

20 

P
age 35



3.5 System Overview Cancer 

21 

P
age 36



3.6 Cancer - 2 week waits 

Cancer performance for the 2 week (time to first outpatient appointment) standard in June 2020 remained 

excellent, with 97.8% GCCG patients (GHFT achieved 98.0%), thus achieving the target of 93%. There were 

35 breaches in total across all specialties, with activity continuing to rise from the historic lows of April/May in 

the lockdown period. 

 

In April, a backlog of patients who chose to avoid hospital settings and actively delayed their first 

appointment made meeting the target difficult.  While this is no longer such a common issue, the availability 

of diagnostics and patients shielding for clinical reasons have continued to impact performance against this 

target slightly.  In the coming months, performance may be affect by patient choice, particularly over the 

summer period, when many people have chosen to travel, reducing their availability for appointments. 

22 

P
age 37



3.7 Cancer - 62 days 

CCG performance improved for 62 day waits, with June at 79.3% (74.6% in May).  There were 29 breaches 

of which: 1 in Gynaecology (90.9%), 4 in Haematological malignancies (60.0%), 2 in Head & Neck (80.0%), 

3 in Lower GI (70.0%), 1 in Lung (66.7%), 5 in Skin (89.1%), 3 in Upper GI (81.3%) and 10 in Urology 

(47.4%). 

 

104 breaches 

There were 12 breaches of 104 day treatment waits – 5 in Urology, 3 in Skin, 2 in Head and Nick, 1 in Lower 

GI, 1 in Haematological cancers. 

 

Due to the reduced referral levels in previous months, performance may increase against the 62 day 

standard, with fewer patients awaiting treatment than in the pre-lockdown period.  

 

 

23 

P
age 38



3.7 Cancer – Actions and updates 

Phase 3 planning 

Cancer services have been prioritised throughout the COVID-19 response, meaning that there is not a large backlog of 
patients awaiting treatment locally.  As referrals dropped in the COVID-19 period there are fewer patients on the cancer 
PTL than at any point prior to the COVID-19 lockdown (91 patients waiting more than 62 days for first definitive treatment 
– however this will include some patients who have been treated but have not received a definitive pathological diagnosis 
of cancer). 

While there may be a “hidden” backlog of patients, referral demand has not yet increased above 2019/20 levels, which 
was the expectation nationally.   

Phase 3 modelling currently suggests referral levels and treatment volumes will return to 2019/20 levels and cancer 
capacity will be capable of offering treatments to diagnosed patients in similar volumes to 2019/20. 

 

Additional actions: 

• Work is ongoing locally to support lung 2ww referrals in particular, which in July remain 40% down on July 2019 
demand.  

• The Skin referral assessment service is fully operational and appears to be having an impact on the number of skin 
2ww referrals that are made.  Skin referrals remain 40% lower than 2019 levels, while treatments have returned to 
pre-COVID levels (in June 2020). 

• FIT testing being implemented prior to 2ww Lower GI  referral to help with prioritisation and find more cancers whilst 
protecting endoscopy service through recovery. 

• Cancer services have created a video detailing how the hospital is ensuring patient safety through social distancing in 
order to give confidence to patients attending for cancer appointments. 

 

Faster Diagnosis Standard: 

The assurance use of the 28 day diagnosis standard had been delayed due to COVID-19, however is still reported as an 
operational standard.  In June 2020, 75% of GCCG patients received a diagnosis or exclusion of cancer within 28 days of 
referral on a 2ww pathway.  GHFT reported 79% compliance with the 28 day target.  As of 1st July Version 11 of Cancer 
Wait Times Monitoring Guidance is now in place, which brings in the 28 day target – initially set at 75%. 
 

P
age 39



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health - IAPT 

25 

P
age 40



26 

3.8 Mental Health - IAPT 

IAPT access rates continue to increase with 
16.8% of the estimated population who 
could benefit from the service accessing it.  
The COVID-19 response impacted both the 
service’s ability to offer the volume of activity 
and patient choice in taking up therapy at 
this time, and demand is still recovering, 
however June’s rate is a significant recovery 
from the low point of 6.6% in April 2020.   

 

A low referral rate is being experienced 
across the South West region and the 
disruption that C19 has caused on IAPT 
delivery has been recognised at a national 
reporting level, but referrals have increased 
locally in the past few weeks to 80% of pre-
lockdown levels – likely due to local 
promotion which has been carried out.  

 

Recovery performance dropped significantly 
in April, with 37.5% patients finishing 
treatment entering recovery, but has 
recovered in May and June 2020 with 44.3% 
and 54.5% recovery respectively – June 
2020 meeting the national 50% standard 
once again.  

 

Group therapy cannot be safely offered at 
present and the structure of the service has 
been altered to treat more patients with a 
brief intervention or signposting.  This 
means some patients have chosen to not 
complete therapy when they were part way 
through a group course, or choose not to 
take an online option if they would prefer to 
see someone in person.  

P
age 41



3.9 Continuing Health Care  - COVID-19 response 

• As of 19th March all CHC assessments were suspended. All discharges from hospitals (Acute & 

Community) and all Fast Tracks referrals became ‘COVID Interim Funded’ . 

• All outstanding CHC assessments (103) were put on hold as the CHC nurses were deployed to assist 

the discharge process from hospitals around the county.  

• Fast tracks were still being used in the community to refer people, but these were also classed as COVID 

Interim Funded for April. 

• From May, community Fast Track referrals have resumed and are no longer classified as COVID Interim 

Funded. 

• Positive and negative checklists continue to be submitted to the CHC team, however the 28 day period 

will not apply for assessment of these referrals, and volumes have significantly reduced. 

• The CHC Nurses have also been supporting the Vulnerable People’s Call Centre and the Complex Team 

have been involved with the supplies of PPE to the CHC funded people in the community. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30 

Check lists 

received 

April May June July 

Positive 20 14 17 28 

Negative   5 7 9 

Fast Track 0 54 98 112 

CHC referrals 2020/21: COVID Interim funding summary: 

P
age 42



   

 Gloucestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC)

                                             September 2020

                            One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report

Since March 2020, the Health and Care system in Gloucestershire has been responding to the 

COVID-19 pandemic as a major incident. Our incident response has seen significant changes to 

the way health and social care is being delivered to our population. The following report provides 

an update to HOSC members on the work of key programme and projects across Gloucestershire’s 

Integrated Care System (ICS) during this time.

Some of our programmes’ focus has inevitably changed during the pandemic and certain activities 

have been accelerated or prioritised because of the COVID-19 response.  During our ‘recovery 

phase’ we have refocused  and returned to a new ‘business as usual’, restarting our programmes 

as appropriate and reprioritising in light of the new environment we are operating in. Our Phase 3 

plan in response to the NHS COVID-19 Pandemic Guidance has recently been submitted and this 

further outlines our future plans. 

From April 2020 we moved into the fourth year of our Sustainability and Transformation plan. One 

of the roles of the ICS is to improve the quality of Health and Care by working in a more joined up 

way as a system. One ‘silver lining’ of the COVID-19 incident is that we have many new examples 

of excellent system working and delivery of best practice during the past few months, which the ICS 

have captured and intend to build on as we move forward. 

COVID-19 Response
The incident response has been delivered through a bronze, silver and gold command structure, 

working in partnership with the Local Resilience Forum and co-ordinating the NHS response across 

partner organisations. An example of this is the work undertaken by the Transport bronze cell. The 

aim of the cell is to work across the ICS system to ensure the right transport option is identified, 

sourced and is available at the right time for each patient. Non-emergency transport providers have 

offered SWAST spare capacity for lower acuity transport cases in order to safeguard emergency 

ambulance capacity. All system partners have also worked together to ensure there is a full offer of 

1. Introduction

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



2
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

community, public and NHS funded transport.

The diagram below shows this operating structure, the bronze cells at the bottom representing co-

ordinated county wide working on identified priorities. 

As we continue into the recovery phase bronze cells will gradually be stood down as we move to 

business as usual for ICS work programmes. 

COVID-19 Recovery
As COVID -19 cases, both locally and nationally, have significantly declined the NHS has set out a 

recovery and restoration programme to describe how health and care services will return to near 

normal levels of delivery. The Gloucestershire system has made very good progress in re-

establishing services and promoting access to those services however there is recognition that 

services cannot return to previous operating models for a range of reasons: 

 Loss of productivity due to increased need for infection control measures in all health and 

Page 44



3
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

care services, which include but is not limited to extended use of PPE for staff and patients, 

additional requirements for cleaning between patients, social distancing measures limiting 

the use of services delivered to groups and access to facilities 

 The ongoing additional support needed for people in the shielded and vulnerable categories, 

coupled with these services needing to be delivered through virtual means

 Preparation for anticipated increased winter pressures, including any potential second peak 

of COVID-19 and the potential for any peak to coincide with future seasonal flu peak.

Hospital discharge requirements and community capacity (including care homes) forms a crucial 

aspect of our winter plans. The most recent hospital discharge guidance is being worked through 

by the Activity & Bed Planning cell where a task and finish group has been established to 

understand our current position and evaluate how we can best deliver the requirements.

Accepting that productivity has been severely compromised regarding the delivery of health and 

care services, the recovery programme is nonetheless looking at ways to reinstate services quickly 

that were adapted during the outbreak, whilst also looking at maximising the transformations that 

have come from new ways of working during the outbreak; for example extending the use of virtual 

means of conducting patient consultations. We are using patient and public feedback plus 

information from services to help scope how the health and wellbeing needs of the Gloucestershire 

population will have changed as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of the 

associated lock-down measures. 

 There are plans to restore Integrated Locality Partnership meetings with a planned focus on 

improving health inequalities particularly in Gloucester City.  

 We are Participating in the South West ‘Adapt and Adopt’ process, this is a national 

programme focussing upon accelerating planned care recovery within the following work 

streams; endoscopy, CT & MRI, outpatients, theatres and cancer services.

 To help with the demands for services as we move towards the winter the system is 

promoting the NHS 111- Think First campaign. 

The work on the future needs of the Gloucestershire population will be a major focus as this work 

progresses. We are keen to use a wide range of sources of information including feedback from 

the public, patients, carers and staff to help plan how we need to change and adapt to different 

needs going forwards. 

Page 45



4
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

Focus on Patient, carer and staff feedback and engagement

During the COVID-19 outbreak ICS Partners and Healthwatch Gloucestershire continue 

to maintain service user and carer involvement;

 PALS have continued to be available and adapted their services and access.

 The GHC social inclusion team have remained active with over 100 people accessing their 

services

 Gloucestershire CCG have been collecting patient stories

 Using an online survey Healthwatch Gloucestershire have been asking people “Has your 

health and care been affected by Coronovirus?”

Feedback has also been gathered from staff working across the system including;

 Dedicated email inboxes for feedback

 Staff support hubs

 In depth de-briefing and “silver linings” work with teams

 Regular newsletters including health and wellbeing, vlogs and updates 

In order to continue to learn from our response to COVID-19 and improve services as we move 

forward the ICS has planned further ways to engage with patient, carer, staff and the public to 

gather their feedback. This includes;

 GHC undertaking focus groups and launched “Caring through COVID-19 – your experience 

survey”

 GCCG supporting development of a regional experience survey

 Telephone interviews with people supported by the Vulnerable People telephone line

 Continue virtual Patient Participation Group with primary care PPGs

 Use of online engagement tool “Engagement HQ” to support more in depth engagement 

without face to face meetings.

The existing ICS programmes are currently reviewing their work programmes and continuing to 

work on and accelerate high priority areas. The following sections highlight some of the work being 

undertaken by a selection of programmes.
 

The projects within these work streams where able are continuing to run to previous plans but 

2. Enabling Active Communities

Page 46



5
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

adapting their approach in light of COVID-19 restrictions e.g. moving to telephone/video 

conferencing rather than face-to-face. Where projects are unable to continue contingency plans are 

being drawn up and new methods of delivery explored. Project teams are looking at how projects 

can support the recovery effort. 

Volunteering

During COVID-19 there was an incredible new wave of volunteering and there is now a clear drive 

to turn COVID-19 volunteering into a lasting legacy for Gloucestershire. A new system-wide 

Gloucestershire Volunteering Partnership Working group has been established and has undertaken 

a survey of new volunteers who came forward during COVID-19 and also people who had 

volunteered previously. This process identified 880 people who said they would be interested in 

future volunteering opportunities so the working group are now reaching out to those people.

The group is also working with local Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise organisations and 

three local VCSE partners (GRCC, FVAF and GL11) are co-ordinating a listening and learning 

event on 29th September. The group are also talking to local businesses and employers to bring 

together the views of volunteers, local VCSE and employers to map the way forwards.

                                          

The Clinical Programme Groups (CPGs) have all highlighted the impact of COVID-19 on the 

transformation programmes and Terms of Reference have been amended to agree ways of 

working through the COVID-19 incident and recovery phases. Where projects are able they are 

continuing to run but adapting their approach in light of COVID-19 restrictions. Where projects are 

unable to continue contingency plans are being drawn up and new methods of delivery explored. 

There is also opportunity to fast track some work programme content (i.e. non face to face 

appointments).  The Cancer, Diabetes and Respiratory Clinical Programme Groups have a high 

priority within the COVID- 19 response given the impact on people with these conditions. Cancer 

performance has improved significantly where patients waiting for referral under the 2 week wait 

have been treated and Gloucestershire is exceeding national performance averages. 

Recovery priority areas include;

 Respiratory – COVID and Non COVID pathways

 Cancer (including implementation of Faecal Immunochemical Test - FIT)

 Frailty pathway

3. Clinical Programme Approach

Page 47



6
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

 End of Life Care

 Muscular Skeletal  (MSK) Pathways

These areas have important links to;

 Mental Health pathways including social prescribing

 Diagnostics

 Use of remote technology including digital methods for advice and guidance between GPs 

and hospital clinicians.

These will sit alongside the existing CPG priority areas. All pathways are keen to build on the 

momentum of changes made to date, for example the use of virtual appointments and are looking 

to prioritise patient and public involvement to inform substantiating or introducing new changes.

Focus on Diabetes Prevention

There are currently five million people in England at high risk of developing Type 2 diabetes. If 

these trends persist, one in three people will be obese by 2034 and one in 10 will develop Type 2 

diabetes. There is strong international evidence which demonstrates how behavioral 

interventions, which support people to maintain a healthy weight and be more active, can 

significantly, reduce the risk of developing the condition.

The Healthier You: NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme 
(NHS DPP) identifies those at high risk and refers them onto 

a behaviour change programme. Patients are able to self-

refer onto the programme via the diabetes UK know your risk 

tool.

In the next few weeks the Gloucestershire will become one of 10 areas taking part in the NHS 
Low Calorie Diet Programme Pilot. The programme provides a low calorie diet treatment for 

people who are overweight and living with Type 2 diabetes. 

The new programme will initially be offered to 5,000 people in selected areas across England 

including Gloucestershire. Participants will be offered;

 Total diet replacement products including soups and shakes consisting of up to 900 

calories a day for up to 12 weeks. During this time participants will be expected to replace 

Page 48

https://riskscore.diabetes.org.uk/?_ga=2.213677524.1530579557.1599058628-761009502.1599058628


7
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

all normal meals with these products.

 Alongside this, participants will receive support for 12 months including help to re-introduce 

food after the initial 12 week period. Depending on where they live, this will either be 

delivered:

 in groups (online currently in line with social distancing guidelines)

 one-to-one (online currently in line with social distancing guidelines), or

 digitally/remotely via an app, online or over the phone (Gloucestershire model)

 This support will provide participants with the help and advice they need throughout every 

phase of the programme. They will also be closely supported by their local GP practice, for 

example if medicines need to be changed.

Our vision for future Health and Social Care in Gloucestershire is supported by our enabling 

programmes. These are working to ensure that the ICS has the right capacity and capability to 

deliver on the clinical priorities. Updates from some of the programmes include;

Joint IT Strategy: Local Digital Roadmap

All transformation work programmes have paused, except where objectives are aligned to 

supporting the COVID-19 Response. This has meant a concentration on supporting remote 

working and online access for patients.

  Focus on Digital & Virtual Appointments

Digital support to staff and patients has developed rapidly during COVID-19, supported by 

cross system working. There are many areas were work has accelerated including;

 Enabling staff and clinicians to work from home

 Enabling patients to interact remotely

 Advice & guidance between referrers and specialists for urgent patient needs

 Support new services with infrastructure including community hubs, testing 

sites, Vulnerable People call line

 Implementation of national systems and data flows

 Connecting care homes to securely message GPs

 Upgrades to the network to add bandwidth

4. Enabling Programmes

Page 49



8
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

Our GP online triage and video consultations are some of the highest in the region

Page 50



9
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

Joint Workforce Strategy

The system is ensuring that we taking steps to continue to support our staff wellbeing and keep 

them as safe as possible as we move into the recovery period, acting on national guidance and 

working across all partner organisations jointly with our staff. This includes developing a system 

plan in response to WE ARE THE NHS: People Plan 2020/21 - action for us all’. 

Work is underway to agree key areas of ICS focus to improve the experience of and opportunities 

for our BAME workforce. These will include:

 Sharing resources and places on Leadership programmes

 Extension of ‘reciprocal mentoring schemes’

 Considering internships for BAME individuals leaving care

 Linking existing diversity networks and aiming for a collective conference in 2021. 

Primary Care Strategy

Practice requirements have increased under the Care Homes COVID Response, ahead of the 

national specification which is due to commence in Oct 2020. This includes virtual GP ward 

rounds. All Care Homes are now aligned to a single PCN across the county. 

As a Wave 2 Integrated Care System we are working towards increased integration to improve 

health and wellbeing, we believe that by all working better together, in a more joined up way, and 

using the strengths of individuals, carers and local communities, we will transform the quality of 

care and support we provide to local people. The System Development work stream captures the 

work to develop the overarching ICS programme. The responsibilities of this programme are as 

follows:

 Provide Programme Direction to the Gloucestershire ICS

 Manage a Communications and Engagement approach on behalf of the ICS, including 

ensuring the Health and Social Care Act duties regarding significant services changes are met 

in relationship to the ICS

 Ensure the ICS has a robust resources plan in place that all ICS partners are signed up to and 

that is aligned to organisational level plans.

5. Integrated Care System Development

Page 51



10
HOSC-ICS Leads report September 2020

 To ensure that the ICS has clear governance and performance management in place to 

ensure the system can manage and oversee delivery.

Due to the COVID- 19 the 2020/21 the Publication of the Gloucestershire Long Term Plan (LTP) 

has been delayed. Some of the work-streams within the LTP have been accelerated in particular 

around staffing, outpatient care, digital streams & sustainability. This programme is pulling 

together the system response to the national Phase 3 planning requirements that will set out the 

plan for Gloucestershire system over the next 6 months. The priorities of these plans are 

 Accelerating the return to near normal levels of non-COVID health services making full use 

of capacity available

 Preparedness for winter demand pressures alongside readiness for further local COVID-19 

pressures

 Evaluating the changes we have made during the response including listening to the views 

of our population and staff to distil how we move forward with our silver lining 

transformations to lock in beneficial change. We will do this in a way that continues our 

mission to reduce health inequalities and support prevention throughout all pathways of 

care.

 Continuation towards our Fit for the Future vision in to deliver against our medium term 

strategy as a system.

 Our local People Plan will put our staff at the centre of everything we do ensuring that we 

maximise support to everyone who works with and alongside us

This report is provided for information and HOSC Members are invited to note the contents. 

Mary Hutton 

ICS Lead, One Gloucestershire ICS

6. Recommendations

Page 52



1

Gloucestershire Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (HOSC)

15 September 2020 

NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG) 
Clinical Chair’s and Accountable Officer’s Report 

1. Introduction

Section A provides a general NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG) commissioner update, incorporating national consultations. 
Section B provides a commissioner update focussing on primary medical care.
Section C provides Trusts’ updates from: Gloucestershire Health and Care 
NHS Foundation Trust (GHC) and Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust (GHT).

Integrated Care System (ICS)
ICS Lead Report is provided as a separate agenda item.

2. Section A: Local NHS Commissioner Update, 
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(GCCG) 

These are items are for information and noting.
Please note some of the items reported below may also feature in more detail in 

other reports prepared for HOSC e.g. ICS Lead Report, wherever possible 
duplication is avoided.

2.1 Local Outbreak Management Plan
As HOSC Members will be aware from the national reporting, we are currently in 
the phase of the pandemic where we are increasingly responding as a health 
service to small geographically defined outbreaks. It has been reported that at any 
one time there can be upwards of a 100 small outbreaks anywhere in the country 
which can often be contained by taking immediate action. A lot of work has been 
done by our local Public Health colleagues on our local outbreak management 
plan.

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



2

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) has advised that local outbreak 
management plans need to be centred on 7 themes:

 Planning for local outbreaks in care homes and schools;
 Identifying and planning how to manage other high-risk places, locations 

and communities of interest e.g. supported housing, rough sleepers, etc.;
 Identifying methods for local testing to ensure a swift response that is 

accessible to the entire population;
 Assessing local and regional contact tracing and infection control capability 

in complex settings and the need for mutual aid with other Local Authorities;
 Integrating national and local data and scenario planning through the
 Joint Biosecurity Centre;
 Supporting vulnerable local people to get help to self-isolate (e.g. 

encouraging neighbours to offer support, supporting with food and 
medication) and ensuring services meet the needs of diverse communities; 
and

 Establishing governance structures led by existing Health Protection Boards 
and supported by existing Local Resilience Forum (LRF) structures and a 
new member-led Board to communicate with the general public.

2.2 Learning from the pandemic response
There are a number of organisations who are interested in understanding how the 
system in Gloucestershire have responded to the pandemic. This includes 
responding to an approach made by the Care Quality Commission. They selected 
the Gloucestershire system to record examples of good practice and learning to 
capture to feed into their national reporting. 

The ICS has a review underway to document the lessons learned and new ways of 
working developed in the months of the pandemic. 

The CCG has also asked internal auditors to audit aspects of the CCG’s response 
and identify learning. As with any major incident response, as well as identifying 
the things which have worked well, there is always important learning from the 
areas where there have been particular challenges to face and where perhaps 
things could be done differently in the future.

2.3 COVID-19 Experience Feedback
COVID-19 incident management has given all parts of the One Gloucestershire 
ICS opportunities to work differently and innovate.
Capturing and sharing the experience of patients, carers and staff is crucial so we 
can continue to improve as a system after COVID-19 and learn from all the 
incredible hard work that has been done during this time.

2.3.1 Local activity undertaken: Examples of how One Gloucestershire ICS NHS 
partners and Healthwatch Gloucestershire have been maintaining service 
user and carer involvement during COVID-19
During the pandemic all Patient Support, Advice and Liaison Services have 
adapted to ensure that patients, carers and families are able to access the support 

Page 54



3

they require. As well as resolving issues, these services are recording experience 
of local services.

Reporting of Friends and Family Test (FFT) data to NHSE/NHSI has been 
suspended from March 2020 onwards. However, GHT made the decision to 
continue to monitor FFT feedback as the Trust runs surveys electronically and 
could continue to use this as a Quality measure of services during COVID-19.

The GHC Social Inclusion Team has remained actively involved with over 100 
people: including Experts by lived Experience, Students and
Peer support Volunteers within Recovery College and Live Better, Feel
Better programmes and other Patient representatives through community 
stakeholder groups, e.g. Inclusion Gloucestershire.
This has been achieved via a combination of:

 Holding MS teams virtual weekly meetings (with those registered on the 
Experts programme: Carers, Service Users and Patients)

 Email communications
 Co- production and sharing of newsletters to Student and Peer Support 

Volunteers
 Use and sharing of Easy Read resources developed by GHC (Coronavirus 

Easy Read Patient Resources for People With a Learning Disability) 
endorsed by NHS England

 Regular phone calls and text messages

Maintaining these connections has ensured that Experts by Experience,
Patients, Service Users and Carers feel valued as part of the organisation and has 
provided an opportunity to test the use of technology to support involvement 
activity.

NHS Gloucestershire CCG (GCCG) has been collecting Patient Stories of COVID-
19, inviting patients and carers to tell their story in their own words either in writing 
or through a telephone interview.

Healthwatch Gloucestershire (HWG) has been asking local people: Has your 
health and care been affected by coronavirus? Through an online survey, HWG 
has been gathering feedback from local people about their health and care 
experiences during the virus outbreak. HWG has also undertaken a series of 
online workshops. 

In July HWG launched #BecauseWeAllCare campaign, calling on local people to 
feedback about care during COVID-19 to help services improve 
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatch-gloucestershire-
launches-becauseweallcare-campaign/ 

2.3.2 Examples of how ICS NHS partners have been gathering feedback from staff 
during COVID-19
At GHC the process for capturing lesson learned has included workshops hosted 
between operational / service delivery teams to capture feedback from operational 
service managers and professional leads.

The methods for capturing feedback from all GHC staff builds on the organisation 
and system wide work already underway for capturing key learning points from 
COVID-19 – these are as follows:

Page 55

https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatch-gloucestershire-launches-becauseweallcare-campaign/
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatch-gloucestershire-launches-becauseweallcare-campaign/


4

 A brief questionnaire for capturing key lesson learned has been targeted at 
Senior Leadership Network staff members.

 Global email requesting All Staff to share experiences and learning from 
COVID-19 incident management arrangements.

 Programmes and Transformation Team has facilitated de-briefing meetings 
to be held in district localities sites - A combination of drop in sessions in 
main site foyers to give direct feedback alongside facilitated sessions with 
Staff invited to attend ( via MS Teams)

GHT has coordinated its collection of feedback from staff under the ‘Silver Linings’ 
programme. ‘Silver Linings’ has facilitated the collection of feedback using the 
following mechanisms:

 Daily Staff Update emails
 2020 Staff Support Hub
 A dedicated Silver Linings Mailbox
 Daily SitRep conference calls
 Emails from individuals 
 CEO weekly vlog
 COVID step-down and step-up plans

GCCG has established COVID-19 staff briefings including a VLOG from a member 
of the Executive Team. A GCCG staff wellbeing newsletter has provided the 
opportunity to share ideas and provide feedback about how to cope during the 
pandemic and share new ways of working.

2.3.4 Local and regional activity underway
A range of local and regional activity is planned in order to capture experience of 
COVID-19.

Focus Groups
GHC is capturing Service User and Carer feedback via virtual focus groups. The 
Trust is also exploring the potential to use the feedback mechanism in 
‘Appointments Anywhere’ to capture patient feedback. The Trust has launched 
(w/c 8 June 2020) a Caring through COVID-19 – Your Experience survey. The 
survey was aimed at individuals who have either had experience of GHC services 
as a patient, service user or as an unpaid carer during the current COVID-19 
pandemic.

Regional COVID 19 Experience Survey
GCCG has worked with colleagues from NHS England/Innovation (NHSE/I), 
Dorset CCG and Somerset CCG to develop a regional COVID-19 Experience 
Survey. The purpose of developing a regional survey is to identify any regional 
variation in patient experience of COVID-19 and to allow for comparison across 
systems. The survey was ‘live’ throughout July 2020. 

More than 6500 people completed the survey with over 1600 responses from the 
Gloucestershire area. Analysis of responses is currently underway. 

Vulnerable People’s Phone Service
GCCG experience and engagement staff has undertaken telephone interviews to 
capture the experience of individuals who have been contacted by the Vulnerable 
People’s Phone Service. A very positive response to this service has been 
recorded. 

Page 56



5

2.4 Keeping CCG Staff Safe and Well
During the past few months the CCG has continued to work with its staff on 
creating a safe working environment for those staff members who need or wish to 
work at Sanger House. 

Risk Reduction Guidance from NHS England and NHS Employers has been made 
available to NHS organisations to help them identify those staff who might be at 
highest risk of infection or have adverse outcomes from exposure to the COVID-19 
virus. This guidance provided a framework which NHS organisations were 
instructed to adopt, to ensure that organisations identified staff members who 
would be at highest risk to the virus. NHS organisations are required to assess 
staff members working conditions and to make adjustments to their working 
environment to reduce the likelihood of exposure to the virus. This guidance 
helped shape the CCG’s Risk Reduction Framework, which has been used to 
ensure appropriate adjustments are made to mitigate the risk of COVID-19 in high 
risk NHS staff, particularly healthcare workers from a black and minority ethnic 
background and those with underlying health conditions.

2.5 Gloucestershire Partnership Boards during COVID1919
Gloucestershire has had Partnership Boards for many years helping to shape and 
influence services and highlighting the experiences of people with “lived 
experience”. 

The Boards are established for Learning Disabilities, Autism, Mental Health, 
Physical Disabilities and Sensory Impairment and most recently Carers. Each 
board meets independently several times a year, bringing together people with 
lived experience, and professionals within the statutory services and the voluntary 
sector as a working collaboration to effect positive change.

A meeting was scheduled in March 2020 as the COVID19 crisis was unfolding and 
the planned meeting was held via Zoom instead of the usual face to face 
gathering. What became apparent in that meeting was:

 Zoom attendance was excellent as no travelling was involved so clicking in 
from home or office freed up significant time.

 There were common issues in each board in relation to support and needs 
when dealing with COVID19.

 The joint partnership boards had the ability to bring together a very wide 
group of people ranging from those experiencing first-hand the problems of 
coping with their conditions during COVID19, the many voluntary 
organisations working hard to support them and officials working within 
health and social care who were tasked with steering a path through the 
lockdown.

 The boards could feed into the county’s emergency command structure 
rapidly and effectively.

Page 57



6

2.5.1 Deepening Inequalities
The intelligence gathered from the weekly meetings highlighted the widening 
inequalities for people with disabilities and mental health conditions due to 
COVID19:

 Disruption and distress for people with autism who struggle with any change 
to their routine, anxiety about COVID19 and a lack of understanding why 
things had changed.

 Distress for people with mental health needs, increasing symptoms of 
anxiety and many reporting that their mental health was deteriorating by 
remaining at home, sometimes in isolation.

 People with disabilities who previously coped with living independently but 
were reliant on online food delivery, found it difficult to get a delivery slot. 
Others were reliant on elderly parents for support who could no longer visit, 
as they may have been shielding. This meant that they had no clean 
clothes, no support to read mail, pay bills etc.

 Many hospital appointments were cancelled. This led to a big impact on 
people’s quality of life and their ability to cope with their long term conditions 
and pain management.

 People with hearing or visual impairments felt even more isolated than usual 
due to social distancing.

 For some people British Sign Language is their first language so general 
information about COVID19 is difficult to understand.

 The gap in services for people with complex neurological conditions 
deepened further. Treatment ceased as staff were redeployed. There were 
no funding streams, initiatives, specialist services to support this group as 
neurological conditions are not formally recognised as part of national or 
regional programmes. Individuals struggled with their very complex 
disabilities, raising concerns that they were not identified as “shielding” or 
“vulnerable”.

2.5.2 Positive Results
The experience of the Partnership Boards’ collaboration has been overwhelmingly 
positive and has kept Gloucestershire one step ahead of the curve in managing the 
pandemic.

 Collaboration is key: The culture established from day 1 was that 
everyone’s views were equal.

 Genuine co-production: People felt listened to and positive changes 
happened as a result of true collaboration.

 Attendance: Virtual meetings facilitated much wider and consistent 
attendance.

 Simplified chain of command: This meant that issues were followed by 
actions quickly and effectively via the emergency planning process.

 Impact: Almost everyone who fell into the vulnerable people categories 2, 3 
and 4 were represented at the weekly board meetings. This harnessed 
invaluable intelligence which fed into the emergency planning cells via the 
Vulnerable People Bronze Cell.

Page 58



7

 Reinvigorated professionals: Collaboration enabled everyone to see that 
the direct effects of their work made a real difference and their creative 
ideas were appreciated and actioned. Creative responses included;
 Issues fed in directly from the VCS or people with lived experience were 

escalated to relevant command structure and action implemented, either 
on an individual or collective basis.

 Collaboration mapping exercise between VCS and statutory sector to 
assist community hub support across the county.

 VCS helped to produce guidance for professionals, translate statutory 
documents and newsletters into easy read or BSL and established a
COVID19 website as a place where people could go to find the latest 
advice https://www.inclusiongloucestershire.co.uk/COVID-19

 PPE issues and solutions shared across all sectors working with 
commissioners and brokerage.

 In lieu of any national guidance, we worked with colleagues in Public 
Health to create local guidance on the reopening day services to support 
small VCS organisations to re-open safely.

 Information and Guidance were shared widely keeping everyone informed 
on the latest information.

 Newsletters: Fortnightly bulletins kept many people in vulnerable 
categories informed across the county on a frequent basis and helped to 
simplify key messages from Government.

 Neurology sub group: A sub group was set up at the start of the pandemic 
as individuals with neurological conditions were disproportionately affected 
by COVID19. This brought together the acute and community health 
sectors, commissioners, professionals and VCS.

 Voluntary sector and statutory services working together sharing issues 
and actions in a way that had rarely happened before.

In summary, working together via the collaboration of partnership boards
 has been a tremendously positive experience. There has been significant learning 
which will shape the way we develop services in future. By combining the 
partnership boards, it has strengthened the voice of people with “lived experience”, 
brought VCS organisations together and acted as a valuable resource to the 
statutory services. This learning will be included within the Partnership Board 
Review which recommences from September 2020.

2.6 Community phlebotomy services 
Background
From the previous updates on this topic in March and July 2020, members will be 
aware that community phlebotomy services have historically been provided in a 
range of settings and locations within Gloucestershire, including ‘drop in’ hospital 
clinics and GP practices.  Blood tests are requested by a range of clinicians: GPs 
and hospitals based clinical teams. 

Page 59



8

Whilst some patients have always accessed a local phlebotomy service from their 
GP Practice, there were also many other patients who had to travel into hospital to 
have their bloods taken.  High levels of demand within the hospital setting led to 
long waiting times for many patients. On occasion, hospital services had to close 
earlier than scheduled in order to manage safely the number of patients waiting, 
with some patients then needing to come back on another date.

Update
The CCG wanted to improve this service for patients by ensuring all patients get 
timely access to a safe and high quality community phlebotomy service at a 
location as close to their home as possible ensuring the provision of a consistent 
service across the county.  Therefore from 1 July 2020, the CCG has funded all 
Gloucestershire CCG Member GP practices to provide this service to their patients 
in practice for GP requested blood tests.  

For those patients who already access GP requested blood tests in their local GP 
practice, there is no change.  For those patients who would have made use of 
hospital ‘drop in’ phlebotomy clinics for GP requested blood tests, the move to a 
new service model with phlebotomy provided from their GP practice, will result in 
reduced travel and waiting times and the avoidance of hospital car parking charges 
(at Cheltenham General and Gloucestershire Royal Hospitals).  The vast majority 
of practices in county who had not previously provided phlebotomy to their patients 
commenced doing so from 1 July 2020, with all practices providing a service by the 
end of the summer.  Patients requiring more specialist phlebotomy services such 
as those requiring specialist tests, those under the care of hospital consultants and 
those aged under 11 years will still need to travel to either Cheltenham General or 
Gloucestershire Royal Hospitals.

Cirencester Hospital: The arrangements for community phlebotomy were 
historically different to elsewhere in the county. A service for all GP requested 
blood tests, as well as all hospital (secondary care specialist and Cirencester 
Hospital requested tests) was provided at a Drop In service at Cirencester 
Hospital. 

As a result of the change resulting in all GP requested blood tests now being 
provided within all practices in Cirencester; at Cirencester Hospital only blood tests 
requested by Cirencester Hospital staff and a reduced service solely for secondary 
care requested blood tests will be provided. This arrangement will be reviewed this 
autumn and permanent arrangements for secondary care requested blood tests 
will be put in place.

2.7 Engagement HQ
The CCG Engagement Team is getting ready for the ‘go live’ of the online 
engagement tool: ‘Engagement HQ’. The system provides a range of integrated 
online engagement tools, information and communication resources, as well as 
participant record management, reporting and data analysis capabilities. Key 
Features include:

Page 60



9

 Our domain name – Get Involved in Gloucestershire (GIG)
 Capacity to engage in open community consultation projects or protected 

consultation projects; specific on-line stakeholder panels or focus groups;
 Capacity to determine, capture and manage participant demographic data 

and participant records;
 Accessibility via mobiles, tablets and PCs;
 Access to discussion forums to engage in and facilitate discussion

To register to join GIG from mid-September visit: 
https://www.getinvolved.glos.nhs.uk and Get Involved in Gloucestershire!

2.8 Healthwatch Gloucestershire Annual Report
The HWG Annual Report ‘Guided by you’, shows how HWG have worked with 
communities across Gloucestershire to make a difference to the way health and 
care services are run, and to raise awareness of important health and social care 
issues. The report also identifies the most common health and social care 
concerns raised by local people and looks forward to work in 2020/21.
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatchgloucestershire-
annual-report-listening-to-local-people-helps-make-health-and-social-care-better/

The CCG was pleased to be invited to comment in the Annual Report on the 
valuable work of Healthwatch volunteers who had contributed to Engagements on 
the local NHS Long Term Plan and Fit for the Future last year.

3. Department of Health and Social Care and NHS 
England Consultations

3.1 Information regarding Department of Health and Social Care consultations is 
available via the GOV.UK website: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations

3.2 Information regarding NHS England consultations is available via the NHS 
England website: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/

The Department of Health and NHS England websites also include responses 
to closed consultations.

3.3 Department of Health and Social Care 
Access to all government departments and many other agencies and public 
bodies have been merged into GOV.UK 
Here you can see all news and communications, statistics and consultations. 
Find out how government services are performing and how satisfied users are 
https://www.gov.uk/

Page 61

https://www.getinvolved.glos.nhs.uk/
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatchgloucestershire-annual-report-listening-to-local-people-helps-make-health-and-social-care-better/
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatchgloucestershire-annual-report-listening-to-local-people-helps-make-health-and-social-care-better/
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatchgloucestershire-annual-report-listening-to-local-people-helps-make-health-and-social-care-better/
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatchgloucestershire-annual-report-listening-to-local-people-helps-make-health-and-social-care-better/
https://www.healthwatchgloucestershire.co.uk/news/healthwatchgloucestershire-annual-report-listening-to-local-people-helps-make-health-and-social-care-better/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/


10

4. Section B: Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG) primary medical care commissioning 
update 

These items are for information and noting.

4.1 Primary Care Business Continuity
The CCG would like to report the significant progress made by Primary
Care in the response to COVID-19, with specific focus on implementation of 
Community Hubs, care homes support, antibody testing in primary care and 
workforce support.

The CCG Primary Care and Localities Directorate remain in regular two way 
communication with Practices, GPs and Primary Care Network (PCN) Clinical 
Directors to understand and alleviate any issues and concerns.
The briefing for General Practice has continued this summer and is shared with 
GPs, Locums, Practice Managers and the LMC from Dr Andy Seymour and Helen 
Goodey. The briefing, shared twice weekly, includes timely national and local 
updates and is shared for urgent reading by recipients.

A daily SITREP (situation report) has been undertaken with all 73 GP practices to 
understand workforce levels and any business continuity concerns including 
personal protective equipment (PPE) concerns, risk assessment audits, and 
support is offered quickly where required. The vast majority of appointments in 
practice continue to take place via the phone or using video consultations, however 
practices are seeing patients in practice, where appropriate. Practices and patients 
have embraced phone/video triage and online consultations in this period and this 
will help support general practice to move to a new “normal” way of working 
following the peak of COVID-19.

4.2 Community Hubs & Improved Access
As noted in the last report to HOSC in July, the Community Hubs were located in 
health centres and surgeries across Gloucestershire to support patients who 
needed face-to-face medical support but may have had possible symptoms of 
coronavirus. The locations of these hubs were mapped to Place (Locality) 
populations. 

Following an audit of the Community Hubs since 23 March 2020, and due to a 
decrease in patient demand the CCG, Clinical Directors and Primary Care 
colleagues agreed to decommission many of the Community Hubs during the 
month of July. However, the Community Hubs have the ability to upscale should a 
second peak arise and patient demand requires it in the future. All practices 
continue to triage and see patients, where appropriate, within their practices or on 
a shared basis across their PCN; this is a consistent countywide approach. 
Improved Access (IA) models are being restarted across PCNs in the county 
dependent on patient needs.

Page 62



11

4.3 Care Homes support
In a letter of 1 May 2020 NHSE&I requested primary care and community health 
services help in supporting care homes as part of the COVID-19 response. 
Specifically GP practices have been asked to ensure support for all CQC 
registered Care Homes in Gloucestershire with a clinical lead and around the three 
elements shown below:

 Weekly check ins
 Having a process for development of personalised care and support plans in 

place
 Providing clinical pharmacy support including medication reviews

All CQC registered care homes, which includes older people’s residential homes, 
nursing homes, learning and physical disability homes are now receiving weekly 
check-ins and have a named clinical lead from the relevant GP practice. 

Personalised care planning and medication reviews are being undertaken in the 
majority of cases and the CCG is working with providers to expand this offer to 
support the COVID -19 response requests. The CCG, with GHC and PCN 
colleagues, are in the process of establishing an Enhanced Health in Care Homes 
(EHCH) working group. This group will start to work through the requirements of 
the Enhanced Health in Care Homes (EHCH) Network Designated Enhanced 
Service (DES). The aim is to agree and support a working arrangement that helps 
care homes but is also achievable across both providers (GHC and PCNs). 

As part of the Network DES, the CCG need to finalise the alignment of all CQC 
registered homes, as defined by CQC. The Primary Care team has shared with 
Clinical Directors and Business Managers a list of care homes for the PCNs within 
their locality. The CCG has asked Localities to review those homes that are 
aligned to just one PCN, review those homes that are in the locality but not yet 
aligned to a PCN and review those homes where more than one PCN is currently 
shown as aligned. 

4.4 Digital implementation in Primary Care
The CCG has supported the enablement of remote home working for GPs and 
other practice staff by providing over 900 laptops and circa 300 ‘Away from my 
Desk’ dongles which has enabled staff to work more flexibly around family or other 
commitments, as well as allowing clinical staff who are potentially vulnerable 
themselves to continue to work.

All 73 practices have accuRx video consult installed and online consultation 
capability (Total Triage, E-Consult/Footfall) is being supported for all practices. 
Currently there are now only 6 practices without an online consultation capability.

Those practices who want it are being provided with digital access to GHT’s 
Electronic Patient Record (EPR) to view COVID-19 related hospital admission and 
discharge information.

Page 63



12

4.5 Workforce support and development
During the COVID 19 recovery period, the CCG has continued to support practices 
that are experiencing difficulties recruiting. This includes advertising the award 
winning Health Equalities Fellowships, based in the Inner City Gloucester PCN, for 
which there have been a higher number of expressions of interest in previous 
years. A programme of engagement is taking place for workforce planning 
conversations with PCNs over the summer period

In partnership with the Gloucestershire Primary Care Training Hub, planning is 
underway for 4 engagement programmes taking place in late summer of 2020, 
which includes Clinical Supervision Training for The New Roles in Primary Care, 
Early Career engagement for GPs and Nurses locally called the Spark progamme, 
and a Mid-Career GP Engagement programme locally called Catalyst. The 
programmes will be delivered virtually providing inspiration to GPs at all stages of 
their careers, and support for those undertaking supervision for the Additional 
Roles Reimbursement Scheme.

The CCG has promoted the New to Partnership Programme (N2PP) to
Gloucestershire practices, which is a funded incentive scheme from NHSE/I to 
encourage GPs and other Health Professionals to sign up to partnership 
agreements, thus hoping to lead to a stabilisation of the partnership model in 
general practice. This programme as outlined in the updated GP contract seeks to 
grow the number of Partners in Primary Care. 7
The Gloucestershire Primary Care Training Hub and Gloucestershire CCG are 
pleased to be working in partnership with the South West Leadership Academy to 
support GPs and Primary Care Leaders from other professions on a Leading 
Effectively in Primary Care Networks programme.

4.6 Primary Care Estates and Facilities
The new medical centre in Valley Road Cinderford opened at the end of August 
2020, replacing Dockham Road Surgery and Forest Health Care.

Construction of the new Prestbury Road Primary Care Centre in Cheltenham is 
expected to get underway this autumn. The new premises will see three town 
centre practices, Berkeley Place, Crescent Bakery and Royal Crescent, relocate.

The new Quayside development will house Gloucester City Health Centre and 
Gloucester Health Access Centre. The building works continues and is expected to 
be completed during spring 2021.

Work on the Chipping Surgery in Wotton-Under-Edge refurbishment and large 
extension and the Highnam Surgery extension will both be completed over the 
next few months.

At its meeting in August 2020 the GCCG Primary Care Commissioning Committee 
(PCCC) agreed the development of a new primary care centre in Coleford to 

Page 64



13

relocate a merged practice created by the joining together of the Brunston & 
Lydbrook Practice and Coleford Family doctors.

4.7 Care Quality Commission (CQC) for General Practice, mergers and changes 
to Primary Care Networks
There have been no new CQC reports issued since the last report to HOSC. Four 
GP Practices in Gloucestershire have a CQC overall rating of “Outstanding”, the 
majority (67) have a rating of “Good” and two have a rating of “Requires 
Improvement”. 

There have been no new contractual mergers to report since the last report to 
HOSC. However, following the previous report where Gloucester City Primary Care 
Network (PCN) configuration changes were shared, the merger of Rosebank and 
Bartongate surgery is now going through appropriate approval process. This will 
add resilience and sustainability of inner city general practice in Gloucester.

4.8 The GP Patient Survey (GPPS)
The GP Patient Survey is an independent survey run by Ipsos MORI on behalf of 
NHS England. The survey is sent out to over two million people across the UK. 
The results show how people feel about their GP practice.

Why the GPPS matters:
 It is good for patients; patients have the chance to share their experience of 

their GP practice
 It is good for practices; GP practices can use the results to improve patient 

experience
 It is reliable; sound data on every GP practice in the country is available.

Fieldwork for the 2020 GP Patient Survey (GPPS) came to a close on 6 April 2020. 
Ipsos MORI and NHS England colleagues are working closely on mitigating and 
understanding the impact of COVID-19 on the survey. As the pandemic was 
announced very late into the survey, it was possible to keep fieldwork open until 
early April as originally intended. The GPPS Survey results were published on 
schedule in early July 2020. 

As in previous years, combined GP practices across Gloucestershire have 
performed above the national average. The top rated practice in Gloucestershire 
this year is Mitcheldean Surgery in the Forest of Dean. Results can be found at the 
GPPS website: https://gp-patient.co.uk/ The  slide-pack with the summary results 
for all Gloucestershire practices can be found at: 
https://gp-patient.co.uk/Slidepacks2020#G

Page 65

https://gp-patient.co.uk/
https://gp-patient.co.uk/Slidepacks2020#G


14

5. Section C: Local Providers’ updates 
This Section includes updates from Gloucestershire Health and Care Services 
NHS Foundation Trust (GHC) and Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust (GHT), 

These items are for information and noting.

5.1 Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust 
(GHC)

5.1.1 COVID Response – Update
The Trust continues to focus on recovering services or delivering them differently, 
following the disruption and changes caused by COVID, while at the same time 
maintaining a state of readiness to respond to any potential ‘second surge’. Among 
the main priorities are ensuring the supply of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
to teams, ensuring buildings are ‘COVID-secure’ and supporting staff with their 
health and wellbeing. The Trust is working with system partners on winter 
planning, which incorporates extensive work to ensure colleagues are vaccinated 
against the flu as well as the significant vaccination programme for children 
countywide which is being delivered differently this year due to COVID. The Trust 
has maintained its ‘Pillar I’ testing services based at Edward Jenner Court in 
Brockworth to ensure early access to testing for health and care staff and enable a 
swift return to work following a negative test. 

5.1.2 Immunisation Catch Ups for Children
The Trust’s immunisation team has been offering ‘catch up’ clinics for children who 
missed their school-based vaccinations due to lockdown, or were absent from 
school at the time of their immunisations. Drive-through appointments have been 
running at Edward Jenner Court in Brockworth, Gloucester, throughout the 
summer, as well as clinics at community venues across Gloucestershire, to catch 
up with as many of the 7,000 vaccinations missed this school year as possible.

The service has been focussed on providing ‘catch ups’ for Year 9 pupils, as well 
as vaccinations for Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) for Year 8 boys and girls and 
Year 9 girls only. If a child has not caught up with their missed vaccinations by 
September 2020, they will receive them in the new academic year.

5.1.3 Oliver McGowan Mandatory Training on Autism and Learning Disabilities
Mandatory training for all social care and health staff in learning disabilities and 
autism moved a step closer with the announcement of the partners including GHC 
who will design, develop, trial and evaluate the training with the partners. 

The training is named after Oliver McGowan whose sad death shone a light on the 
need for health and social care staff to have better training that offers a greater 
understanding and will help improve their skills and confidence when delivering 

Page 66



15

care to people with learning disabilities and autistic people. Oliver’s mum Paula 
McGowan led a campaign for more training. In 2019 the government set out their 
commitment to mandatory training in their consultation response in 'Right to be 
heard’. This was in response to recommendations made in the second annual 
Learning Disabilities Mortality Review (LeDeR) report.

In July 2020, Health Education England, Skills for Care and the Department of 
Health and Social care announced that they had selected the British Institute of 
Learning Disabilities (BILD), Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation 
Trust, Royal Mencap Society/National Autistic Society and Pathways Associates 
CIC as trial partners and the National Development Team for Inclusion have been 
selected as the evaluation partner. Gloucestershire is one of the trial sites for the 
training, which will be delivered through a partnership of Gloucestershire Health 
and Care NHS Foundation Trust, Inclusion Gloucestershire and Family Partnership 
Solutions.

5.1.4 NHS Providers Report Shines Positive Light on GHC
NHS Providers has published a new report which calls for immediate action to 
tackle the stigma and historic underfunding of services for people with learning 
disabilities and autism. The report, titled ‘Getting it Right for Everyone: Meeting the 
Needs of People with a Learning Disability and Autistic People in NHS Services’, 
states that the longstanding inequity in the development, commissioning and 
delivery of these services has harmed the health and wellbeing of these vulnerable 
groups.

However, the report also highlights the fact that most learning disability and autism 
services are providing people with good care, according to the Care Quality 
Commission, and there are some services rated as outstanding. A key objective of 
the report is to share examples of high-quality care across the NHS.

Gloucestershire Health and Care was consulted about the production of this report, 
and the Trust features positively, with mention made of its collaborative work with 
Inclusion Gloucestershire, Family Partnership Solutions and Gloucestershire 
County Council to develop the national Oliver McGowan mandatory training on 
autism and learning disabilities for all health and social care staff. 

The Trust also receives mention for its emphasis on the positive outcomes 
achieved by partnership working, reflected by One Gloucestershire’s status as an 
Integrated Care System, which brings together expertise, experience and 
commitment from health and social care services with lived experience from 
service users and their families and carers.

The report also talks positively about the Trust’s involvement with, and 
organisation of, the annual Big Health and Wellbeing Open Days, as well as its 
response to the challenges presented by COVID-19, working with Gloucestershire 
County Council to make positive behaviour support consultation clinics available to 
staff teams and families.

Page 67



16

5.1.5 Heart Service Noted for Effective Use of Telehealth
The Trust’s Heart Failure Service has been using Telehealth for many years to 
monitor, advise and titrate specialist medicines for its very complex patients. This 
has been especially valuable during the pandemic.

The service has now been noted nationally for the use of this digital platform and is 
regularly presenting to other heart failure services, as well as commissioning 
colleagues, about the benefits of using Telehealth during the pandemic. Novartis, 
technology suppliers, organise forums to enable clinical networking where 
discussions on adopting Telehealth as a post-pandemic option for service delivery 
have been very well received. This demonstrates how GHC is one of the 
forerunners nationally in safe, effective clinical care delivery for a high-risk patient 
group.

5.2 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHT) 

5.2.1 Our digital journey
In August 2020 the Trust took another huge step towards its vision of an electronic 
patient record with the launch of electronic ordering. This means that doctors and 
nurses working in Gloucestershire’s acute hospitals, can now order pathology tests 
and radiology images on the Trust computer system and no longer rely on paper 
forms. The benefits to this are huge, clinicians can now see their patient’s tests on 
one system and it reduces the risk of lost paperwork and ordering the same test 
many times. We know this system will save lives and reduce costs.

 
This is in no small part due to the work of the Digital Care Team and the 
engagement from clinical leaders and digital champions on the ground. Roll out 
across more services will continue into September 2020.

 
This follows the successful rollout of the new digital system at the start of the year 
(2020) across all adult inpatient wards, which are now using the Electronic Patient 
Record (EPR) - meaning nursing staff can now carry out checks and update 
patient notes on mobile computers at the patients’ bedsides rather than in paper 
format at nursing stations. Studies carried out before and after the system was 
implemented have shown that nurses are now spending up to 20% more time at 
the patient bedside. Since moving patient observations to the system, clinicians 
can immediately see where the sickest patients are on arrival at a ward, no longer 
relying on individual paper notes at each bedside. 

As well as freeing up more nursing time to care for patients, the EPR is supporting 
better clinical decision-making, enhancing patient care and improving patient 
experience.

The EPR has provided Trust staff with essential information throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic, giving access to real time inpatient information and helped 

Page 68



17

manage flow through hospitals. It also enabled clinicians working remotely or in 
isolation, to keep track of their patients from home. Working closely with the CCG, 
the Trust was able to give GPs access to Sunrise EPR (software that allows GPs 
to access patients’ electronic hospital record) during the peak of the pandemic, 
helping discharges to be planned more effectively and ensuring patients could be 
fully supported when they arrived home. The Trust is now working with adult social 
care, to see how access to the Trust’s EPR can support the work they do. 

 
In due course all the patient records at Gloucestershire Royal and Cheltenham 
General Hospitals will be available digitally and accessible to all authorised health 
and care professionals including GPs and other community health and care 
professionals.

5.2.2. Plans to transform hospitals
Exciting plans to transform Cheltenham General and Gloucestershire Royal 
Hospitals as part of a £39.5m investment have taken a step forward after planning 
applications were submitted at the end of June 2020.

Under the plans Cheltenham General Hospital (CGH) would benefit from two 
additional theatres and a new day surgery unit. If approved, the development 
would provide additional operating capacity in purpose built facilities that would 
improve patient and staff experience, enable more efficient ways of working, 
reduce waiting lists and result in fewer planned operations being cancelled.

Gloucestershire Royal Hospital (GRH) would benefit from an improved Emergency 
Department and Acute Medical Unit facilities designed to improve diagnosis, 
assessment, treatment and patient flow. These changes would also include a 
redesigned orthopaedic outpatients area, additional x-ray capacity and improved 
ward facilities.

This is a huge milestone in the Trust’s journey to deliver better care for patients 
and an improved working environment for staff. Subject to planning permission and 
the approval of the final business case, work could begin on site next year and the 
possibility of the buildings being open to patients in early 2023.  Not only would 
these developments provide additional space across both sites, which is much 
needed, but they would also ensure the Trust can provide care in a modern 
environment, more befitting the quality of the clinical services provided. 

5.2.3 NHS 72nd birthday celebrations
This year marks 72 years since the NHS came into being and in July 2020 the 
Trust celebrated in style with partner organisations across the county.

It was a moment for everyone to reflect on the outstanding achievements of the 
local NHS and its partners and the ability of health service staff to rise to the 
challenge, innovate and come together for patients in the face of adversity. 

Page 69



18

NHS buildings were illuminated as part of the overall celebrations and staff and 
public tributes were broadcast across social media on Sunday 5 July 2020 
including a live event at Gloucestershire Royal Hospital as part of the ‘clap of 
claps’ to say the biggest thank you yet to colleagues and everyone who has helped 
through the pandemic so far. 

5.2.4 Nursing Times Awards
The Trust is proud to have been shortlisted for the prestigious Nursing Times 
Awards in the 'Respiratory Nursing' (The Yellow Lanyard Respiratory Skills Team) 
and 'Infection Prevention and Control' (PPE Safety Officers) categories. This year 
the awards will take place on 14 October 2020 will mark the 30th Anniversary of the 
awards as well as the International year of the Nurse and Midwife. This year’s 
awards will be an incredible opportunity to promote the hard work and dedication of 
the nursing profession.

5.2.5 Speaker of the month: Ethel Changa
The Trust’s Equality and Diversity Network invited Ethel Changa, South Region 
Lead, a member of the Chief Nursing Officer’s Black and Minority Ethnic Strategic 
Advisory Group to be their keynote speaker in August 2020.

Ethel is a registered Mental Health Nurse and Cognitive Behavioural Therapist. 
Some of the many things Ethel is passionate about are: patient risk management; 
suicide prevention; evidence based person-centred care; workforce wellbeing and 
development. She has been involved in promoting equality and inclusion and 
championing the workforce race equality standards across the regions.

5.2.6 COVID-19 research trials
Despite the reduction in the number of cases locally, COVID-19 research remains 
the priority for the Trust’s Research and Development Team, which continues to be 
busy especially now studies are coming through that are looking at immunity, 
impact on staff and, in the not too distant future, vaccine studies.  

The NHS COVID-19 vaccine research registry is now live and helping people 
across the UK sign up for information on the new COVID-19 vaccine trials. It is 
anticipated that regional vaccine studies will be starting in September/ October 
2020.

The Trust has also successfully reopened a number of studies that were paused 
during COVID-19 and have opened one new commercial study - NHS CHECK – 
share your COVID-19 experience. The aim of this research project is to understand 
the impact of the pressures resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic and to provide 
the support our staff need.

The aim of the SIREN Study is to determine whether having antibodies for COVID-
19 reduces the risk of a second infection.  Following soft launches in both 
Gloucester and Cheltenham Hospitals of the SIREN study, the Trust has now fully 
opened recruitment to all Trust staff. 62 staff members have already been for 

Page 70

https://twitter.com/NursingTimes/


19

their baseline visits, with about the same number booked in.  The research delivery 
teams are working flat out to get other staff who have registered interest booked in 
as quickly as possible.

5.2.7 Youth Ambassador update
Following the first online meeting of the Gloucestershire Hospitals Youth Group, 
the Trust Youth Ambassadors are starting to focus on projects across hospitals 
that will benefit from the feedback of young people.  These include the rebranding 
of the Children’s Centre and the transition from children’s services to adult 
services. The next meeting of the group will be in September 2020 - if you or if any 
young people you know are aged 11-24 and would like to join - please get in 
touch. 

5.2.8 Governor elections 
Nominations closed on Thursday 20 August 2020 for Trust staff and public 
Governor elections. Nominations were open for staff governors in all staff groups 
and for the Cotswolds, Forest of Dean, Gloucester, Stroud and out of county public 
constituencies. The statement of candidates goes live soon.

5.2.9 Ministry of Defence Employers Recognition Scheme
The Trust is delighted to have been revalidated for the prestigious Gold award as 
part of the Ministry of Defence’s Employer Recognition Scheme this year – one of 
only 14 NHS organisations to have been awarded Gold.

The awards celebrate the fantastic work that organisations demonstrate as 
committed employers of members of the Armed Forces community and the 
advocacy to this agenda. 

5.2.10 Cervical screening update
The Trust’s colposcopy service was highlighted in August 2020 for its fantastic 
patient response, both in its service planning and the commitment and hard work 
shown by all colleagues involved. The colposcopy service has continued 
throughout COVID-19. Furthermore, Public Health England has commended the 
service during this time compared to national data. Going forward, the team 
continue to monitor the demand and capacity and have contingency plans for 
potential raised demands or a second wave of COVID-19.

6. Recommendations
This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are invited to note 
the contents.

Dr Andrew Seymour Mary Hutton 
Clinical Chair Accountable Officer
NHS Gloucestershire CCG NHS Gloucestershire CCG

7 September 2020

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report
	9 One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report
	10 GCCG Clinical Chair/ Accountable Officer Report

